Senate Committee on Finance & Planning
Minutes of the Meeting
March 3, 2015

[These notes reflect discussion and debate at a meeting of a committee of the University of Minnesota Senate; none
of the comments, conclusions or actions reported in these notes represent the views of, nor are they binding on, the
Senate, the Administration or the Board of Regents.]

In these minutes: [Financial overview of the University Libraries; old and new business]

PRESENT: Gary Cohen, chair: Russell Luepker, Megan Wiza, Erik van Kuijk, Quinn Jurgens,
Jennifer Gunn, Fred Morrison, Jill Merriam, Pam Wheelock, Dan Feeney, Linc Kallsen,
Catherine Fitch, Paul Olin, Tracy Peters, Karen Seashore, Renee Cheng, Michael Korth, Taylor
Barker, David Fisher

REGRETS: Kara Kersteter

ABSENT: Karen Ho, Richard Pfutzenreuter, Michael Volna, Samantha Jensen, Laura
Kalambokidis

GUESTS: Wendy Lougee, University Librarian

OTHER: Jennifer Alexander, chair, Library Committee; Brian Swanson, assistant vice president,
University Services

Professor Cohen welcomed the committee.
1. Financial overview of the University Libraries

Cohen introduced Wendy Lougee, University Librarian, who presented a financial overview of
the University Libraries. She directed committee members’ attention to the presentation and
highlighted salient information, beginning with the Libraries’ primary cost drivers:

Publishing

Technology

Research & learning programs
Space

Of those, Lougee said campus priorities and directions research and learning were the most
critical drivers. Lougee noted new items for research and learning, which have been primarily
funded through reallocation:

e Support for innovations in teaching/learning, including evidence-based and experiential
learning, affordable course content agenda

e Data management program, DRUM (Data Repository for University of Minnesota)

e Content and copyright services

Lougee noted the Libraries’ expanded roles in these areas:



e Education & consulting programs
o Expansion from information skills to: inquiry, copyright, digital scholarship,

policy
e Services
o Expansion from reference services to: creation, delivery, publishing, analytics,
archiving

e Knowledge resources
o Expansion from library collections focus to: individual, campus, multi-
institutional content
e Infrastructure
o Expansion from Library facilities focus to: repositories, access systems, global
networks

Lougee went on to note trends in collection financial impacts, including price inflation for
published materials:

e 6-7% annual inflation
e 73% expenditures now digital/licensed

Lougee said that there were very few parts of the University that had the type of unrelenting high
inflation that Libraries had to deal with. She said they were aggressive with licensing to try to
cap annual increases for publisher packages. Lougee said the Libraries have advanced an
argument about annual inflation on licenses similar to the Office of Information Technology
(OIT) support for software license inflation.

Lougee noted technology issues:

e Infrastructure: hardware/software, storage
e Access: New enterprise systems for UMN libraries
e Digital preservation (on University IT capital plan)

Lougee also pointed out that the implementation of the enterprise system that the Libraries put in
place last year was self-funded, which was about $700,000. Libraries are now on the new IT
capital planning docket for digital preservation.

In terms of space, Lougee noted continuing concerns:

Ongoing collections management, transfers to storage
Leased space

Ongoing maintenance, furnishings

Facility renovation

Libraries have an ongoing program of storing collections to accommodate new acquisitions, and
they must lease additional space. Lougee noted that modest renovations are internally funded to
upgrade and repair furnishings within the 13 different facilities.



Lougee referred to the budget model, saying the attribution metric used was the weighted
headcount of faculty and students. The total weighted headcount for the Twin Cities campus is
47,520. She went on to discuss how the full cost pool is created. The total libraries cost pool
attributed to colleges: $50,974,844.

Cohen asked how much responsibility they assumed for libraries on system campuses. Lougee
said they provide technology infrastructure support, such as the enterprise systems and some
licensing, but those campus libraries report to their respective chancellors.

Professor Luepker asked how the fringe simplification affected the Libraries. Lougee said that
the fringe simplification was to be conducted in a budget neutral way; however, the job family
study hit Libraries after the adjustment. A number of staff were reclassified from civil service to
P&A, thus increasing their fringe rate. Lougee said the Libraries received some new money this
year to make up for the underfunding after the fringe rate simplification.

Lougee reviewed the Libraries FY 15 budget non-sponsored allocations and budgeted revenue,
and O&M expense budget. In the period of 2010-2015, Libraries have reduced O&M with
$5.3M in recurring reductions and $1.5-2M internal reallocation. Selected strategies have
included:

e Attrition, layoffs and RIOs

e Service consolidations and elimination

e Two libraries closed (Forestry consolidated with Entomology, Fisheries, and Wildlife;
Plant Pathology about to close)

e Technology-enabled savings

Lougee displayed graphs illustrating the top 25 research libraries in terms of collection
expenditures (UMN is 19™) and comparisons of professional and support staff with peer
institutions (UMN is at the bottom of CIC peers).

Lougee reviewed FY 16 planning:

e Projected inflation (6%) and meeting current commitments: $801,500

e 2.3% reductions ($834,500)
o 1.5% University reduction $546,000
o New charges (insurance, enterprise tax, job study, 27" pay period) $288,000
o 15 voluntary leave/layoffs

e New service demands

e Minimum wage impact on student employees (Libraries has one of the largest student

employment rosters on campus)

Libraries FY 16 Preliminary Allocations:

e FY16 Compensation program (2%) funded @ $492,000

Libraries not required to contribute to 0.9% reduction program (estimated @$324,000)

e New O&M program funds: $502,450; including $344,950 of the requested $801,000 for
collection support.



Lougee discussed the future of the Libraries, including:

Downsizing collection commitments

Ongoing reallocation to meet new staffing needs
Continued recurring reductions expected
Modest facility investments

IT capital planning for digital preservation
Grants as increasing source of support

Scaled collaboration with other institutions

Cohen asked what the practical implications of downsizing the collection were in the short and
medium range. Lougee said in the near term, licenses to some expensive indexes may be
eliminated, as search engines now covered some of the content. The Libraries will continue with
aggressive licensing to hold inflation at a lower level; and they will likely purchase fewer
monographs. To Cohen’s concerns about cutting the journal titles, Lougee said that part of the
problem is that licensing agreements restrict how the packages can be trimmed.

Professor Seashore asked if open access publishing would save any money for the University.
Lougee said most publisher open access policies have an embargo period, and Libraries did not
think it was wise to not receive the new journal publications in the meantime. Thus, it was
unlikely that there would be any immediate savings. However, it was increasingly more likely
that articles needed for a class might be openly available and that royalty charges for these copies
would not be necessary, savings student costs. In response to a question about page costs,
Lougee explained the difference between page costs and author fees for open access publishing,
and told the committee about the open access authors’ fund, jointly funded by the Libraries and
the Office of the Vice President for Research (OVPR). The fund pays authors’ fees on behalf of
faculty if they do not have grant money or other resources. Professor van Kuijk asked about the
possibility of sharing subscriptions with other institutions. Lougee said while this could not be
done, the Libraries work within the CIC on joint licensing, which results in cost savings.

Professor Feeney said he had been involved with the discussions for the adoption of the current
budget model, and asked if the metrics were appropriate. Lougee said the most visible impact
was on AHC, where there were a larger number of appointments for affiliated individuals. When
the weighted headcount metric was introduced, a number of these appointments (often without
salary) were discontinued. Cohen noted many postdocs and grad students leave the University
and wish to keep their affiliation with the University in order to retain broad access to library
resources. However, they may not realize these resources are not free.

Seashore inquired about ways to increase revenue or sales of services. Lougee said they did offer
borrowing privileges for a fee as well as a fee-based service for businesses. Professor Gunn
noted that the Libraries’ staff was already down to the bare bones compared to peer institutions,
and asked about the possibility of more reallocations to meet new staff needs. Lougee said the
reallocations might be directed toward new needs in support for data, analytics services, and
eLearning. She went on to say that further closures of libraries were unlikely as there was not
sufficient storage for collections. Cohen noted that the Libraries must continue to maintain
physical materials and archives, which creates an ever-increasing need for storage. Lougee



acknowledged the archives were a conundrum: it is difficult to move archives offsite given the
large number of boxes an individual user might need retrieved for research.

Professor Morrison asked if Libraries were getting any increase in the acquisitions budget based
on inflation, and Lougee said they were receiving the $344K of the $800K requested on a base of
just under $16M. Professor Alexander, chair, Libraries Committee, said her committee would be
revisiting the subject of leveraging digital resources as a way to respond to the budget issues.
Cohen said those resources also come at some real cost; just because they are digital doesn’t
mean they are free.

Seashore asked about colleges paying into the cost pools based on the weighted headcount for
library services, yet some colleges, such as in medical areas, cost more to service. Lougee said
they considered various kinds of attribution metrics, but the weighted headcount was deemed the
fairest way to do it, recognizing it was simply a surrogate data point.

Vice president Wheelock said there were many space challenges, and asked if Lougee had a
sense of what was needed for offsite storage, archives, service delivery and the like. Lougee said
they had put together a twenty-year plan for collection growth and noted the University of
Minnesota is unique in that it has a large library in every geographic sector of the campus. This
offers opportunity for serving different sectors more easily, rather than a large central library in
one part of the campus.

Cohen thanked Lougee for the information.
2. Old business

Kallsen reported on the graduate assistant fee issue and distributed information to the committee.
The information was from the OneStop student services web page, and detailed the processes for
fee billing, and Kallsen noted that if there is a student who is registered with one of the various
job codes detailed, installment fees and/or late fees are automatically waived.

The committee discussed the issue:

e Tracy Peters wondered why this was not applicable for those full-time employees
pursuing advanced degrees on Regents Scholarship, as fees are just as much as a burden
to them. Kallsen agreed, and Cohen said the committee had no authority over the matter.

e Morrison asked Kallsen to speak to the issue of the appropriateness of the various fees in
the first place, noting that there had been discussions about that.

e Kallsen said there was a three-year period in which all parts of the Regents policy on
course fees, student service fees, collegiate fees, miscellaneous fees, etc. were reviewed.
There had been attempts to standardize fee structures, but colleges often ask for
variances.

e Peters and Gunn noted the different fee structures for different colleges.

e (Cohen wondered if the issue was under discussion elsewhere at the University.

e Morrison wondered if fees were frozen when tuition freezes were in place, or if fees
increased nonetheless.



e Quinn Jurgens said that there had been discussions among student committees, and noted
the groups funded by student activity fees are also responsible for approving the slate,
which resulted in conflicts of interests.

e Gunn pointed out that student fees were a major issue in the University’s ability to
compete for graduate students, and noted many students are shocked that such a large
percentage of their stipend goes to fees. It is cheaper to have a postdoc than a grad
student and that should be rectified, Gunn said.

Wheelock said having an overview of the fees, what they are, the decision making-process
around them, and who has the authority to set the fees are issues very appropriate to the
committee. Cohen said that might be the focus of an upcoming meeting. Seashore noted that a
review of past minutes would indicate that the committee had discussed the topic in years past.

Cohen reported on a meeting of the Faculty Consultative Committee (FCC) in which many deans
were present. At the meeting, Cohen raised issues of longer range planning and inadequacies
with the planning methodology. However, Cohen said, no one had ideas about how to improve
the process.

Cohen then discussed the impact of the new fringe rates, saying central administration had been
working to make the impact cost neutral. He noted concern that the only reason cited for the new
rate structure was that it simplified the accounting. However, there had been negative impacts
with important programmatic implications, and associate vice president Tonneson had been
negotiating with some of the deans to navigate these impacts. Morrison said the radical reduction
in the number of different fringe rates defeated the budget model because the budget model is
supposed to be putting the costs where the revenues are to cover them. Not only does it distort
the budget model, it harms the professional schools. Cohen asked Morrison to write a brief
statement with the possibility of sending it to higher administration. Seashore noted the impact
was not the same for all the professional schools, and Cohen questioned the logic behind the new
system. Morrison said he thought the new policy was a decision based on incomplete
information. Wheelock said the committee should not presume it had all the information
regarding the decision either, and a good place to start is to make sure the committee had
accurate and complete information. Cohen said the issue had been discussed at least three times,
and the committee would only like to ask for a reconsideration of the policy.

Cohen also brought up the issue of funding for IT expenditures. One revenue source is the
Enterprise tax, a percentage charge on all salaries and wages paid, which is supposed to pay for
major capital investments in Enterprise IT systems. The other source is the cost pool for ongoing
IT expenditures based on total headcount of students, faculty and staff. The question arose about
why the distinction exists anymore and if it made sense to have two sources. Cohen asked the
committee if there ought to be a future discussion about whether to ask the administration to
reconsider. The committee concluded it had other priorities at this time, and Cohen said it would
behoove the committee to ask Tonneson and vice president and CFO Richard Pfutzenreuter to
update the committee again. However, the committee would not take action at this time.

Hearing no further business, Cohen adjourned the meeting.

Mary Jo Pehl



University Senate



